
 

The Board of Commissioners reserves the right to continue the meeting to another time and place in the event the number of people in attendance at the meeting, including 
the Board of Commissioners, staff, and members of the public exceeds the legal limits.  The meeting cannot be closed to the public except by a majority vote of a quorum 

present for the meeting.  The board can vote to go into an executive session on a legally exempt matter during a public meeting even if not advertised or listed on the 

agenda.  Individuals with disabilities who require certain accommodations in order to allow them to observe and/or participate in this meeting, or who have questions 
regarding the accessibility of the meeting or the facilities are required to contact the ADA Compliance Officer, at least three business days in advance of the meeting at 

706-485-2776 to allow the County to make reasonable accommodations for those persons. 

 

Page 1 of 1 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Agenda 

Tuesday, November 17, 2020 ◊ 6:30 PM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome- Call to Order 

2. Approval of Agenda 

3. Invocation 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (KI) 

5. Special Presentation - SWA Update by Trevor Addison 

 

Zoning/Public Hearing 
6. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. 

Presently zoned C-2 [Map 090, Parcel 032, District 2]. (staff-P&D) 

7. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. 

Presently zoned AG-1 [Map 090, Parcel 033001, District 2]. (staff-P&D) 

8. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. 

Presently zoned AG-1 [Map 090, Parcel 027001, District 2]. (staff-P&D) 

9. Request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 13.89 acres from AG-1 to R-1 on Loch Way 

[Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011, District 2] (staff-P&D) 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
10. Public Comments 

11. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - November 6, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - November 6, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Section 5311 FY2022 Grant Application (staff-Transit) 

12. Approval of FY2020 LMIG Project List (staff-CM) 

13. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment of a portion of Horton Drive (staff-CC) 

14. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Designating Alternate Court Locations (staff-CM) 

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Use of Facilities Agreement for Plaza Arts Center (staff-CM) 

 

Reports/Announcements 
16. County Manager Report 

17. County Attorney Report 

18. Commissioner Announcements 

 

Closing 
19. Adjournment 

1



File Attachments for Item:

6. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for conditional use on Pea Ridge Road.  

Presently zoned C-2 [Map 090, Parcel 032, District 2]. (staff-P&D)

2



Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road.  Presently zoned C-2 [Map 090, Parcel 

032, District 2].  
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use to establish a solar farm. The solar 

farm would be positioned upon three parcels, (map 090 parcel 032, map 090 parcel 
033001, map 090 parcel 027001) totaling 25.5-acre leased area. The solar array 

will be constructed on approximately 16 acres of the 25.5. The solar photovoltaic 
(PV) modules will be mounted on a racking system approximately 6 feet above the 
ground. This proposed plant would produce 2.8-megawatts (MW) of electricity. 

  
This is allowed in C-2 as a conditional use according to, Sec. 53-4. - Placement by 

zoning district. The adjacent and nearby properties are a Dollar General store, a 
Gas Station/Convenience Store, a Marine Supply Store, and undeveloped forested 
land. Other than during construction, the proposed use is not anticipated to create 

objectionable noise nor vibration beyond what would typically be associated with 
commercial use. The intended use should not have a significant impact on traffic 

generated in the area. The facility is passive, with no on-site personnel required for 
day-to-day operations. The solar modules are coated with a non-reflective material 

designed to maximize light absorption and significantly reduce glare. The proposed 
development will not have an adverse effect on the nearby roads, adjacent 
properties, or the community. 

 

3

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH53SOEN_S53-4PLZODI
https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH53SOEN_S53-4PLZODI


 

4



 
Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar farm 

located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], with the following 
conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted 
plans in support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to 

those that conform with solar energy production and any other 
use or accessory use allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of 
Ordinances, this conditional use permit shall be issued for a period 
of two years and will be reviewed for compliance. 

 
 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 

The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval of a 
conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], 

5



[Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following 
conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 
support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 
allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 
conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 

reviewed for compliance. 
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration 
Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
Present:  Chairman James Marshall, Jr., Member Maurice Hill, Jr., Member 

Martha Farley, Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training 
requirements) 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Courtney Andrews and Ben Schmitt 
 
The following items 10-12 were heard as one before the board. 

 
10.Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 

conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned C-2. [Map 090, Parcel 
032, District 2].  

 

11.Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 

033001, District 2].  
 
 

12. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 

027001]. Mr. Ryan Peters represented this request. He stated that he is 
an environmental engineer with SolAmerica Energy, a solar development 
company based out of Atlanta, Georgia. He added that the three items are a 

combination of three parcels, one is zoned C-2, and the other two are AG-1. 
All of the parcels are owned by Mr. David Erickson. SolAmerica is working 

with Mr. Erickson to lease 25 ½ acres of the combined 115 acres to develop 
a solar farm. The farm itself, meaning the solar panel array will sit on 16 
acres of the 25 ½. The rest of the area will consist of a stormwater 

management pond, access roads, and perimeter buffers. One transformer 
will be on site along with some inverters to convert the power from direct to 

alternating current. The site should produce 2.8 megawatts of electricity, 
which is enough to provide power to 570 homes. Mr. Peters stated that they 

6



are tying into Tri-County’s existing three-phase line on Pea Ridge Road. The 
property is adjacent to Georgia Power’s transmission line easement. The 

project will be 1,000 feet from Pea Ridge Road, and the nearest dwelling is 
over 660 feet to the north. The vegetation outside the proposed area will 

remain. He added that land disturbance will only be on the proposed areas. 
As well as our excess road which will be a 30-foot-wide easement. No one 
spoke in opposition of this request. 

 
Member Hill asked if they are using adjustable panels that alternate to follow the 

sun. Mr. Peters stated that the panels are a fixed-tilt system and will be 
stationary. Member Hill stated that he asked because if it tilts with the sun, you 
could blind some drivers on the road, depending on where it is placed.  

 
Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar farm 

located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], [Map 090, Parcel 
033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 

support of the conditional use application. 
2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 

conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 
allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 
conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 
reviewed for compliance. 

 
  

Motion to approve the request by SolAmerica, LLC, agent for David Erickson, 
for a conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 
032], [Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the 

following conditions: 
1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 

support of the conditional use application. 
2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 

conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 

allowed within C-2. 
3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 

conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 
reviewed for compliance. 

 

Made by Member Hill and seconded by Member Farley 
Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 

 

7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



40



41



42



43



44



File Attachments for Item:

7. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. 

Presently zoned AG-1 [Map 090, Parcel 033001, District 2]. (staff-P&D)

45



Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road.  Presently zoned AG-1 [Map 090, Parcel 

033001, District 2].  
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use to establish a solar farm. The solar 

farm would be positioned upon three parcels, (map 090 parcel 032, map 090 parcel 
033001, map 090 parcel 027001) totaling 25.5-acre leased area. The solar array 

will be constructed on approximately 16 acres of the 25.5. The solar photovoltaic 
(PV) modules will be mounted on a racking system approximately 6 feet above the 
ground. This proposed plant would produce 2.8-megawatts (MW) of electricity. 

  
 This is allowed in AG-1 as a conditional use according to, Sec. 53-4. - 

Placement by zoning district. The adjacent and nearby properties are a Dollar 
General store, a Gas Station/Convenience Store, a Marine Supply Store, and 
undeveloped forested land. Other than during construction, the proposed use is not 

anticipated to create objectionable noise nor vibration beyond what would typically 
be associated with agricultural use. The intended use should not have a significant 

impact on traffic generated in the area. The facility is passive, with no on-site 
personnel required for day-to-day operations. The solar modules are coated with a 

non-reflective material designed to maximize light absorption and significantly 
reduce glare. The proposed development will not have an adverse effect on the 
nearby roads, adjacent properties, or the community. 

 

46

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH53SOEN_S53-4PLZODI
https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH53SOEN_S53-4PLZODI


 

47



 
 Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar 
farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 033001], with the 

following conditions: 
1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 

support of the conditional use application. 
2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 

conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 

allowed within AG-1. 
3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 

conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 
reviewed for compliance. 

 

 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval of a 

conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], 

48



[Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following 
conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 
support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 
allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 
conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 

reviewed for compliance. 
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration 
Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
Present:  Chairman James Marshall, Jr., Member Maurice Hill, Jr., Member 

Martha Farley, Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training 
requirements) 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Courtney Andrews and Ben Schmitt 
 
The following items 10-12 were heard as one before the board. 

 
10.Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 

conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned C-2. [Map 090, Parcel 
032, District 2].  

 

11.Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 

033001, District 2].  
 

12. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 

conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 
027001]. Mr. Ryan Peters represented this request. He stated that he is 

an environmental engineer with SolAmerica Energy, a solar development 
company based out of Atlanta, Georgia. He added that the three items are a 
combination of three parcels, one is zoned C-2, and the other two are AG-1. 

All of the parcels are owned by Mr. David Erickson. SolAmerica is working 
with Mr. Erickson to lease 25 ½ acres of the combined 115 acres to develop 

a solar farm. The farm itself, meaning the solar panel array will sit on 16 
acres of the 25 ½. The rest of the area will consist of a stormwater 
management pond, access roads, and perimeter buffers. One transformer 

will be on site along with some inverters to convert the power from direct to 
alternating current. The site should produce 2.8 megawatts of electricity, 

which is enough to provide power to 570 homes. Mr. Peters stated that they 
are tying into Tri-County’s existing three-phase line on Pea Ridge Road. The 

49



property is adjacent to Georgia Power’s transmission line easement. The 
project will be 1,000 feet from Pea Ridge Road, and the nearest dwelling is 

over 660 feet to the north. The vegetation outside the proposed area will 
remain. He added that land disturbance will only be on the proposed areas. 

As well as our excess road which will be a 30-foot-wide easement. No one 
spoke in opposition of this request. 

 

Member Hill asked if they are using adjustable panels that alternate to follow the 
sun. Mr. Peters stated that the panels are a fixed-tilt system and will be 

stationary. Member Hill stated that he asked because if it tilts with the sun, you 
could blind some drivers on the road, depending on where it is placed.  
 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar farm 
located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], [Map 090, Parcel 

033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following conditions: 
1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 

support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 

allowed within C-2. 
3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 

conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 
reviewed for compliance. 

 

  
Motion to approve the request by SolAmerica, LLC, agent for David Erickson, 

for a conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 
032], [Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the 
following conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 
support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 
allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 
conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 

reviewed for compliance. 
 
Made by Member Hill and seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 
 

50



51



52



53



54



55



56



57



58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



File Attachments for Item:

8. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. 

Presently zoned AG-1 [Map 090, Parcel 027001, District 2]. (staff-P&D)

75



Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson, for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road.  Presently zoned AG-1 [Map 090, Parcel 

027001, District 2].  
 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 
 
The applicant is requesting a conditional use to establish a solar farm. The solar 

farm would be positioned upon three parcels, (map 090 parcel 032, map 090 parcel 
033001, map 090 parcel 027001) totaling 25.5-acre leased area. The solar array 

will be constructed on approximately 16 acres of the 25.5. The solar photovoltaic 
(PV) modules will be mounted on a racking system approximately 6 feet above the 
ground. This proposed plant would produce 2.8-megawatts (MW) of electricity. 

  
This is allowed in AG-1 as a conditional use according to, Sec. 53-4. - Placement by 

zoning district. The adjacent and nearby properties are a Dollar General store, a 
Gas Station/Convenience Store, a Marine Supply Store, and undeveloped forested 
land. Other than during construction, the proposed use is not anticipated to create 

objectionable noise nor vibration beyond what would typically be associated with 
agricultural use. The intended use should not have a significant impact on traffic 

generated in the area. The facility is passive, with no on-site personnel required for 
day-to-day operations. The solar modules are coated with a non-reflective material 

designed to maximize light absorption and significantly reduce glare. The proposed 
development will not have an adverse effect on the nearby roads, adjacent 
properties, or the community. 

 
 

 

76

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH53SOEN_S53-4PLZODI
https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH53SOEN_S53-4PLZODI


 

77



 
 Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar 
farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 027001], with the 

following conditions: 
1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 

support of the conditional use application. 
2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 

conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 

allowed within AG-1. 
3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 

conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 
reviewed for compliance. 

 

 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval of a 
conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], 

78



[Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following 
conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 
support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 
allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 
conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 

reviewed for compliance. 
 
 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration 
Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 
Present:  Chairman James Marshall, Jr., Member Maurice Hill, Jr., Member 

Martha Farley, Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training 
requirements) 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Courtney Andrews and Ben Schmitt 
 
The following items 10-12 were heard as one before the board. 

 
10.Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 

conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned C-2. [Map 090, Parcel 
032, District 2].  

 

11.Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 
conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 

033001, District 2].  
 

12. Request by SolAmerica Energy, LLC, agent for David Erickson for 

conditional use on Pea Ridge Road. Presently zoned AG-1. [Map 090, Parcel 
027001]. Mr. Ryan Peters represented this request. He stated that he is 

an environmental engineer with SolAmerica Energy, a solar development 
company based out of Atlanta, Georgia. He added that the three items are a 
combination of three parcels, one is zoned C-2, and the other two are AG-1. 

All of the parcels are owned by Mr. David Erickson. SolAmerica is working 
with Mr. Erickson to lease 25 ½ acres of the combined 115 acres to develop 

a solar farm. The farm itself, meaning the solar panel array will sit on 16 
acres of the 25 ½. The rest of the area will consist of a stormwater 
management pond, access roads, and perimeter buffers. One transformer 

will be on site along with some inverters to convert the power from direct to 
alternating current. The site should produce 2.8 megawatts of electricity, 

which is enough to provide power to 570 homes. Mr. Peters stated that they 
are tying into Tri-County’s existing three-phase line on Pea Ridge Road. The 

79



property is adjacent to Georgia Power’s transmission line easement. The 
project will be 1,000 feet from Pea Ridge Road, and the nearest dwelling is 

over 660 feet to the north. The vegetation outside the proposed area will 
remain. He added that land disturbance will only be on the proposed areas. 

As well as our excess road which will be a 30-foot-wide easement. No one 
spoke in opposition of this request. 

 

Member Hill asked if they are using adjustable panels that alternate to follow the 
sun. Mr. Peters stated that the panels are a fixed-tilt system and will be 

stationary. Member Hill stated that he asked because if it tilts with the sun, you 
could blind some drivers on the road, depending on where it is placed.  
 

Staff recommendation is for approval of a conditional use for a solar farm 
located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 032], [Map 090, Parcel 

033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the following conditions: 
1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 

support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 

allowed within C-2. 
3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 

conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 
reviewed for compliance. 

 

  
Motion to approve the request by SolAmerica, LLC, agent for David Erickson, 

for a conditional use for a solar farm located on Pea Ridge Road [Map 090, Parcel 
032], [Map 090, Parcel 033001], and [Map 090, Parcel 027001] with the 
following conditions: 

1. The development shall substantially comply with the submitted plans in 
support of the conditional use application. 

2. The uses allowed under the conditional use shall be limited to those that 
conform with solar energy production and any other use or accessory use 
allowed within C-2. 

3. Subject to Section 66-157 of the Putnam County Code of Ordinances, this 
conditional use permit shall be issued for a period of two years and will be 

reviewed for compliance. 
 
Made by Member Hill and seconded by Member Farley 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 
 

80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



File Attachments for Item:

9. Request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 13.89 acres from AG-1 to R-1 on Loch 

Way [Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011, District 2] (staff-P&D)

105



Request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 13.89 acres 
from AG-1 to R-1 on Loch Way [Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011, District 2].  

 
PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT-LISA JACKSON STAFF RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The applicant is requesting to rezone 13.89 acres of their 46-acre lot from AG-1 to 
R-1. He plans to develop single-family residential lots. The remaining 32.11 acres 

will remain zoned AG-1. This parcel of land was zoned R-1 before the previous 
owner rezoned it to AG-1. The proposed use is consistent with the allowed uses, as 

listed in the section. Sec. 66-81. - Uses allowed of the R-1 zoning district. The 
Future Land Use Concept Plan shows this property mixed use and it is located 
adjacent to multiple single-family residential properties. This rezoning to R-1 will 

not adversely impact the use of public facilities or services. Additionally, the 
proposed will not adversely affect the existing use value or usability of adjacent or 

nearby properties. 
 

106

https://library.municode.com/ga/putnam_county/codes/code_of_ordinances?nodeId=PTIICOOR_CH66ZO_SIMIREDI_S66-81USAL


  

107



 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 

 
 

Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 13.891 acres on Loch Way 
[Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011] from AG-1 to R-1 with the following 
conditions: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditional upon the resurveying and 

recordation of the plat, as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam 
County Code of Ordinances. 

 
 
PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION RECOMMENDATION: 

 
The Planning & Zoning Commission’s recommendation is for approval of the request 

by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 13.891 acres on Loch Way 
[Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011] from AG-1 to R-1 with the following conditions: 1.) 
This rezoning shall be conditional upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat, 

as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of Ordinances.  
 

 
 

108



PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION MINUTES: 
 

The Putnam County Planning & Zoning Commission conducted a public hearing on 
Thursday, November 5, 2020 at 6:30 PM in the Putnam County Administration 

Building, 117 Putnam Drive, Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 
 
Present:  Chairman James Marshall, Jr., Member Maurice Hill, Jr., Member 

Martha Farley, Member John Mitchell (not eligible for voting due to training 
requirements) 

Staff Present:  Lisa Jackson, Courtney Andrews and Ben Schmitt 
 

10.Request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to rezone 13.89 acres 

from AG-1 to R-1 on Loch Way. [Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011, District 2]. 
Mr. Russel Wall represented this request for Carolyn Walton. He stated that 

they are seeking to rezone approximately 13.891 acres from AG-1 to R-1, on 
the northeast corner of Highway 144 and Loch Way. The property was zoned 
as R-1 but rezoned to AG-1 as a cost-saving measure during the Great 

Recession. The property is surrounded by residential properties known as 
Lock Haven subdivision. It is consistent with the character of the area. Mr. 

Wall Stated that he believes the neighbors are on board. No one spoke in 
opposition of this request.  

 
Chairman Marshall asked if the rezoning was specifically for a third of the original 
AG-1 piece, and the remainder will remain AG-1. Mr. Wald responded yes.  

 
Staff recommendation is for approval to rezone 13.891 acres on Loch Way [Map 

095A, Part of Parcel 011] from AG-1 to R-1 with the following conditions: 1.) This 
rezoning shall be conditional upon the resurveying and recordation of the plat, as 
stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of Putnam County Code of Ordinances. 

 
Motion to approve the request by Joshua Daniel, agent for Carolyn Walton, to 

rezone 13.891 acres on Loch Way [Map 095A, Part of Parcel 011] from AG-1 to R-1 
with the following conditions: 1.) This rezoning shall be conditional upon the 
resurveying and recordation of the plat, as stated in Section 66-165 (e)(3) of 

Putnam County Code of Ordinances made by Member Farley and seconded by 
Member Hill 

Voting Yea: Chairman Marshall, Member Hill, Member Farley 
 

109



110



111



112



113



114



115



116



117



118



119



120



121



122



123



124



125



File Attachments for Item:

11. Consent Agenda

a. Approval of Minutes - November 6, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC)

b. Approval of Minutes - November 6, 2020 Called Meeting (staff-CC)

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Section 5311 FY2022 Grant Application (staff-Transit)

126



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 1 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 6, 2020                                                                                                                                                 _______________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Minutes 

Friday, November 6, 2020 ◊ 9:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, November 6, 2020 at 

approximately 9:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Attorney Adam Nelson 

County Manager Paul Van Haute 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

 

 

Opening 
1. Welcome - Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 9:02 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

2. Approval of Agenda 

Motion to approve the agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

3. Invocation 

Mr. Jim Rudolph gave the invocation. 

 

4. Pledge of Allegiance (KI) 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin led the Pledge of Allegiance. 

 

 

 

 

127



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 2 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 6, 2020                                                                                                                                                 _______________ 

Code of Ordinances Public Hearing 
5. Proposed adoption of changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E 

(Broadband Ready Community) 

No one signed in to speak on this item. 

Commissioner Sharp suggested a change to Section 5(b)(i) to change from 40 days to 30 

days.  Planning & Development Director Jackson explained that the applicant may need the extra 

time to prepare and submit documents. 

Motion to adopt the changes to the Putnam County Code of Ordinances - Appendix E 

(Broadband Ready Community) as presented at today's meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of changes made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

Road Abandonment Public Hearing 
6. Consideration of Road Abandonment - portion of Horton Drive (KI) 

Ms. Mary Alice Smith and Mr. Antonio Mullins had questions about what portion of Horton 

Drive is being abandoned.  No action was taken. 

 

Regular Business Meeting 
7. Public Comments 

None 

 

8. Consent Agenda 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase II (staff-

P&D) 

Chairman Webster withdrew item c. from the Consent Agenda. 

 

a. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Regular Meeting (staff-CC) 

b. Approval of Minutes - October 20, 2020 Executive Session (staff-CC) 

Motion to approve items a. and b. of the Consent Agenda. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

c. Authorization for Chairman to sign revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase II (staff-

P&D) 

Kristine Tarrer spoke in support of this request and explained the reasons for the request. 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the revised final plat for Phoenix Crossing Phase 

II 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of final plat made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

128



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 3 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 6, 2020                                                                                                                                                 _______________ 

9. Approval of FY2020 Budget Amendment #2 (staff-Finance) 

Motion to approve FY2020 Budget Amendment #2 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of amendment made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

10. Authorization for Chairman to sign GDOT Standard Utility Agreement/Actual Cost Utility 

Agreement-Water Facilities (staff-CM) 

County Manager Van Haute explained that the GDOT 441 widening project needs to move our 

water lines from South Jefferson Avenue to the High School.   

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the GDOT Standard Utility Agreements and 

Actual Cost Utility Agreement and accompanying Resolution. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of documents made a part of the minutes on minute book pages __________ to 

__________.) 

 

11. Authorization for Chairman to sign Georgia Department of Transportation Request for 

Traffic Signal (BW) 

Motion to authorize the Chairman to sign the GDOT Request for Traffic Signal. 

Motion made by Commissioner Sharp, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

(Copy of document made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

12. Surplus Fixed Asset for Sale (staff-CM) 

Paul explained that this property was acquired through a tax sale and now there is some interest 

for the property to be sold. 

Motion to surplus fixed asset, identified as Parcel E006108-108 Jackson Street, for sale at a 

reserve rate of $5400. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Brown. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 
 

Reports/Announcements 
13. County Manager Report 

County Manager Van Haute reported the following: 

 Paramedic Ronnie Franklin was discharged from the hospital after 110 days 

 Planning & Development is working on achieving a solar smart designation for the 

county 

 Auditors will be on site in the next week or two 

 County offices will be closed for Veterans day 

 New radar sign was ordered to help assess complaints that are received 

 HLN Network will be airing a show on Sunday night at 10:00 PM called “Real Life 

Nightmares” – the episode is called Murders on Lake Oconee and is about the Dermond 

murders and will feature Sheriff Howard Sills 

 

129



DRAFT Minutes                                                             Page 4 of 4                                                                                     Approved 

November 6, 2020                                                                                                                                                 _______________ 

14. County Attorney Report 

No report. 

 

15. Commissioner Announcements 

Commissioner Irvin: none 

 

Commissioner Brown: none 

 

Commissioner Sharp: thanked the staff for all their help. 

 

Chairman Webster: none 

 

Closing 
16. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Brown, Commissioner Sharp 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 9:43 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

130



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 1 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

November 6, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _____________ 

PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 

 
 

117 Putnam Drive, Suite A ◊ Eatonton, GA  31024 
 

Called Meeting 

Minutes 

Friday, November 6, 2020 ◊ 10:00 AM 

Putnam County Administration Building – Room 203 

 

The Putnam County Board of Commissioners met on Friday, November 6, 2020 at 

approximately 10:00 AM in the Putnam County Administration Building, 117 Putnam Drive, 

Room 203, Eatonton, Georgia. 

 

PRESENT  

Chairman Billy Webster 

Commissioner Kelvin Irvin 

Commissioner Daniel Brown 

Commissioner Bill Sharp 

 

STAFF PRESENT 

County Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

Public Information Officer Stephanie McMullen 

 

 

Opening 
1. Call to Order 

Chairman Webster called the meeting to order at approximately 10:00 a.m. 

(Copy of agenda made a part of the minutes on minute book page __________.) 

 

Called Meeting 
2. Zoom Meeting Practice 

Chairman Webster advised that the purpose of the called meeting was to learn about and practice 

using Zoom Meetings and how to use the Municode Meetings software for voting during a Zoom 

Meeting. 

 

County Clerk Butterworth and Public Information Officer McMullen assisted the commissioners 

in getting logged in and using the various features of Zoom.  In order to practice online voting a 

sample motion was made: 

Motion to increase the Chairman's salary to $500,000 per year, retroactive to 2004. 

Motion made by Commissioner Brown, Seconded by Commissioner Irvin. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Brown 

Voting Nay: Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

131



DRAFT Called Meeting Minutes                                   Page 2 of 2                                                                                     Approved 

November 6, 2020                                                                                                                                                      _____________ 

The sample motion failed but all commissioners were successful in being able to vote 

electronically and seeing each other's votes. 

 

No real action was taken. 

 

Closing 
3. Adjournment 

Motion to adjourn the meeting. 

Motion made by Commissioner Irvin, Seconded by Commissioner Sharp. 

Voting Yea: Chairman Webster, Commissioner Irvin, Commissioner Sharp 

Voting Abstaining: Commissioner Brown 

 

 

Meeting adjourned at approximately 10:42 a.m. 

 

 

ATTEST: 

 

 

 

Lynn Butterworth      Billy Webster 

County Clerk       Chairman 

132



Georgia 
Department 
of Transportation 

FEDERAL TRANSIT ADMINISTRATION 

SECTION 5311 PROGRAM 
FORMULA FUNDS FOR RURAL TRANSIT 

FY 2022 GRANT APPLICATION 
Please use Adobe Acrobat Reader to complete this application. You may use the tab 

button to navigate between fillable form fields. Only the Transmittal Letter and 
Authorizing Resolution should be printed and returned as a scanned application 

attachment. All other application components should be completed and returned 
electronically. 

Once all components are complete, please submit one (1) electronic copy of the full 
FY 2022 Section 5311 grant application package to your assigned District Project 

Manager by the close of business on December 7, 2020. 

Transit Agency Name: 

Putnam County Transit 

Submitted By: 

Dianne Pounds 

Date Submitted: 

GDOT District Project Manager Signature: 
(To be completed by GDOT staff) 

Date Received: 
(To be completed by GDOT staff) 

133



134



135



136



137



138



139



140



141



142



143



144



145



146



147



148



149



150



151



152



153



154



155



156



157



158



159



160



161



162



163



164



165



166



167



168



169



170



171



172



173



174



175



176



177



178



179



180



181



182



183



184



185



186



187



188



189



190



191



192



193



194



195



196



197



198



199



200



201



202



File Attachments for Item:

12. Approval of FY2020 LMIG Project List (staff-CM)

203



FY2020 LMIG Project Report 2020

DISTRICTS ROAD NAME BEGINNING ENDING LENGTH/MILES DESCRIPTION OF WORK LMIG Award ESTIMATED PROJECT COST PROJECT SCHEDULE

1&2 Browns Chapel Glenwood Springs Hillsboro 1.86

Patching, leveling, and 

resurfacing 20' wide asphalt rd $316,200.00

C Bear Creek Twin Bridges Twin Bridges 0.65

Patching, leveling, and 

resurfacing 20' wide asphalt rd $108,550.00

C Spruce Point Oak Leaf Cir ENDING 0.3

Patching, leveling, and 

resurfacing 20' wide asphalt rd $50,100.00

C Dogwood Pt Oak Leaf Cir ENDING 0.2

Patching, leveling, and 

resurfacing 20' wide asphalt rd $25,050.00

3 Collis Wards Chapel Collis Marine Rd-intersection

Patching, leveling, and 

resurfacing 20' wide asphalt rd $165,778.00 ESCROW

LMIG Award 2019 $510,088.00 $665,678.00 Project Total

Match @ 30% $153,026.40
Total $663,114.40 $2,563.60 Excess funding over Match$

204



File Attachments for Item:

13. Approval of Certification of Road Abandonment of a portion of Horton Drive (staff-CC)

205



ROAD ABANDONMENT CHECKLIST 

 
Name of Road ___________________________________________ 
 

When there is a request to abandon a county road the following steps must be followed: 

 

1. The Board of Commissioners must approve beginning the process at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

2. A “Notice of Intent to Abandon A County Road” must be published in the legal organ of the 

county for two weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

3. Post signs at each end of the road proposed to be abandoned. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

4. Public hearing is held. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

5. Board of Commissioners approves Certification of Road Abandonment at a regular board 

meeting.  

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  A copy of the certification and plat is mailed to the property owner(s). 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

b.  A copy of the certification and plat is published in the county’s legal organ for two 

weeks. 

 

Completed   Dates ____________________________ 

 

6. Board of Commissioners declares road abandoned and authorizes Chairman to sign affidavit 

of abandonment (and, if needed, resolution conveying land to property owner and quit-claim 

deed) at a regular board meeting. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

 

a.  County attorney prepares an affidavit of abandonment (and, if needed, resolution and 

quit-claim deed), to be executed by the Chairman, and files the affidavit and quit-

claim deed with the Putnam County Superior Court. 

 

Completed   Date ____________________________ 

Horton Drive (portion of)

10-02-2020

10-22-2020 & 10-29-2020

10-20-2020

11-06-2020

11-17-2020

✔

✔

✔

✔

206



CERTIFICATION BY  
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
OF DETERMINATION REGARDING ABANDONING 

COUNTY ROAD AND DECLARATION OF ABANDONMENT 
 

 
 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioners has determined that a section of the 
county road system, specifically, a portion of Horton Drive more particularly described on a plat of survey 
attached hereto as “Exhibits A & B” and made a part hereof, has ceased to be used by the public to the 
extent that no substantial public purpose is served by it; and 
 
 WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing with respect to abandoning such public roads has been 
published once a week for a period of two weeks in The Eatonton Messenger which is the newspaper in 
which the sheriff’s advertisements for the county are published; and 
 
 WHEREAS, on November 6, 2020, a public hearing on such issue was held; 
 
 NOW, THEREFORE, in accordance with the provisions of OCGA 32-7-2(b)(1), the Putnam County 
Board of Commissioners does hereby certify that it has determined that the portion of Horton Drive 
described on “Exhibits A & B” attached hereto has ceased to be used by the public to the extent that no 
substantial public purpose is served by it.  The Board does hereby direct the County Clerk to record said 
certification in the Board’s minutes, to provide said certification to the property owners located on the 
portion of the roads described on said “Exhibits A & B”, and to publish notice of said certification in The 
Eatonton Messenger once a week for a period of two weeks. 
 
 The Board does hereby declare that portion of Horton Drive described on said “Exhibits A & B” to 
be abandoned once the requirements of OCGA 32-7-2(b)(1) have been met.  Thereafter that portion of 
roads shall no longer be part of the county road system and the rights of the public in and to the portion 
of the roads as public roads shall cease. 
 
This 17th day of November 2020. 
 
 
PUTNAM COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
 
 
  
Billy Webster 
Chairman 
 
 
ATTEST: 
 
 
 
Lynn Butterworth 
County Clerk 

207



11ft1 11:A r .s�n:r 

7) '"' £,INl1UiT.J 

-:f,/ ,,,.., r-lY • l!dl'7 

,u,c-1-- ro11r 
G114N-,.LI> 

,.,,.. ,,, r,_,,,,,, 

rxur11.J 1/S.-

tff>iftWtt> 

,ur 611U 11#4 
l"f· ,-� 

JIIUf'� .... 
,,,. ,,,

•r" tJOI#( s-11

,, 4 .. , 

,. _,,. ---�, ., . .,,.,. 
1-' �#<Cf ,.,,,,,,.,.?').., ·" 
.-. I•� ':_'.,.Y "/J . . 

� 
C'O<INTY JV<.tt� 

1-fu *�. 112
I' If ,.. "" ,,., � 

N 
T1lAl"JrT" Cl"IIIW 

Jl).f✓t:y 

lEGENO 

C,-, /ll'lttl��'f' •F (.,/F 

JAMEJ H. BOSWELL . .Jlt. 
�ourr:11 GMD .,,, Pr/n!IAltlCl>'11(1"Y �A 
:, •o. Ullo 1J1.nft1t:r ,.1,,,0 £on .w,."4• f # 
l"O O , /00 Joo jc,0 

Jt::-4,t Jl'Y rrcr

.AMfilCAN TE STING WOl!ATORIEJ,1/JC. 
LA70IV1TJN ,uo�tSIA At,,I I� 196., 

• T

Plat Book 11, Page 52 

N7 l 
0

- 57'W 50.0' 

EXHIBIT A
208



EXHIBIT B
209



File Attachments for Item:

14. Authorization for Chairman to sign Resolution Designating Alternate Court Locations (staff-CM)

210



 
 

RESOLUTION 

 

 WHEREAS, the Putnam County Board of Commissioners (“Board”) has determined use 

and access to the County Courthouse, located at 100 S. Jefferson Avenue, Eatonton, GA 31204, 

may be unavailable at times; 

 

WHEREAS, the Board recognizes the need to designate an alternate site or location for 

the State and Superior Courts of Putnam County (“Courts”); 

 

 WHEREAS, it appears to the Board that the best interest of public would be served by 

the furnishing of an alternate facility for the holding of any session or sitting of the Courts; and 

 

 WHEREAS, the Board is authorized under O.C.G.A. § 15-6-18 to establish and designate 

an alternate location and facility for the holding of matters pending in the Courts;  

 

 THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED the Board of Commissioners of Putnam County, 

Georgia hereby designates the following locations as alternate locations for the holding of any 

session or sitting of the State and Superior Court of Putnam County.  These facilities are 

intended to be utilized by the Courts when use of the County Courthouse is otherwise impractical 

or unavailable. 

 Putnam County Administration Building, located at 117 Putnam Drive, Eatonton, GA 

31204 

 Putnam County Recreation Department, located at 140 Recreation Road SW, Eatonton, 

GA  31024 

 The Plaza Arts Center, located at 305 North Madison Avenue, Eatonton, GA  31024 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, this ordinance has been duly adopted by the governing authority of 

Putnam County, Georgia on the 17th day of November 2020.  

 

 

 

      _________________________ 

      Chairman Billy Webster 

 

ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________ 

Clerk Lynn Butterworth 

211



File Attachments for Item:

15. Authorization for Chairman to sign Use of Facilities Agreement for Plaza Arts Center (staff-CM)

212



 

 

-1- 

STATE OF GEORGIA )  

)                 USE OF FACILITIES AGREEMENT 

COUNTY OF PUTNAM  ) 

 

 

This Agreement, made this 17th day of November 2020, by and between The Plaza Arts 

Center, Inc., first party (hereinafter called "PAC" “TPAC”), and the Putnam County Board of 

Commissioners, second party (hereinafter called "County") 

 

WHEREAS, PAC TPAC currently leases property from the City of Eatonton, Georgia, 

identified as 305 N. Madison Ave, Eatonton GA, 31024 (hereinafter called “Center”); 

 

WHEREAS, Brian Kemp, the Governor of the State of Georgia, in response to the COVID-

19 pandemic, has declared a Public Health State of Emergency and placed certain restrictions on 

the congregation of individuals; and 

 

WHEREAS, the County, in order to comply with applicable public safety guidelines, 

desires to obtain the right to use the Center to allow the Superior Court of Putnam County to 

conduct its operations, to include, but not be limited to, the empaneling of grand juries and juries, 

on a temporary basis. 

 

WITNESSETH: 

 

1.  FACILITIES AND TERM:   

 

County shall have the right, at its sole election, to occupy and make use of the Center for 

term of one (1) year, beginning on the 1st day of January 2021, unless sooner terminated by County.  

During the term, County’s right to occupy and use the Center shall be limited to a period of no 

more than 10 5 calendar days per month.  Prior to occupancy or use, County shall provide at least 

two 30 days notice to PAC TPAC of the intention to elect such right of use.  The County specifically 

authorizes Sheriff Howard Sills or Clerk of Court Trevor Addison to provide notice of election of 

use on behalf of County. 

 

2.  USAGE FEE:    

 

County agrees to pay to PAC TPAC a base rate of $100.00 (One Hundred Dollars and 

00/100 Cents) per month.  For each day the County makes use of the Center, County agrees to pay 

to PAC TPAC a daily rental rate of $300.00, due and payable the 1st day of the month immediately 

following the month in which the County elects to make use of the Center.  If payment is not 

received by the 10th day of each month, a late charge shall be owed in the amount of ten percent 

(10%) of the past due rental payment.  

 

213



 

 

-2- 

 

3.  OBLIGATIONS OF COUNTY: 

 

 County shall ensure cleaning procedures necessary to remediate the spread of COVID-19 

upon completion of each non-consecutive use of the Center.  County shall also cause signage to be 

placed in accordance with O.C.G.A. § 51-16-3 at a point of entry at the Center.   

 

  4. INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE:   

 

County agrees to, and hereby does, indemnify and save PAC TPAC harmless against all 

claims for damages to persons or property by reason of County’s use or occupancy of the Center, 

and all expenses incurred by PAC TPAC because thereof, including reasonable attorney's fees and 

court costs.  Supplementing the foregoing and in addition thereto, County shall during all terms of 

this Agreement, and any extension or renewal thereof, and at County’s expense maintain in full 

force and effect comprehensive general liability insurance with limits of $1,000,000 per person and 

$2,000,000 per accident, and property damage limits of $500,000.   

 

5.   APPLICABLE LAW:   

 

This agreement shall be governed, construed and enforced in accordance with the laws of 

the State of Georgia.  Any action, suit or proceeding relating to, arising out of, or in connection 

with this agreement may be brought by any party hereto against any other party hereto in the 

superior court in Putnam County, Georgia.  All parties hereby waive any objection to jurisdiction 

or venue in any such proceeding before said courts. 

 

6.  NOTICES: 

 

 Any notice provided pursuant to this agreement shall be made to the following individuals: 

 

  County 

  Paul Van Haute 

  County Manager, Putnam County Board of Commissioners 

  (706) 485-5826 

  pvanhaute@putnamcountyga.us 

 

  PAC TPAC 

  Roger A. Harrison Mark A. Street 

  Interim Executive Director, The Plaza Arts Center, Inc. 

  (404) 987-4111 (706) 923-1655 

  roger director@plazacenter.org  

 

214



 

 

-3- 

 

 

7.  SEVERABILITY: 

 

 If any provision or portion of a provision of this Agreement is deemed unenforceable, the 

remainder of the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect. 

 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties herein have hereunto set their hands and seals, the 

day and year first above written. 

 

 

 

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED ) PUTNAM COUNTY, GEORGIA  

BEFORE ME this ___ day  )  

of ___________, 2020.  ) 

     ) 

____________________________ ) By:         

Notary Public    )    As its: Chair  

___________ County, Georgia )   

     )  Attest:        

My Commission expires: ________ )    As its: Clerk 

 

       

SWORN TO AND SUBSCRIBED ) PLAZA ARTS CENTER, INC.  

BEFORE ME this ___ day  )  

of ___________, 2020.  ) 

     ) 

____________________________ ) By:         

Notary Public    )    As its: ________  

___________ County, Georgia )   

     )  Attest:        

My Commission expires: ________ )    As its: ________ 

    

 

 

215


	Top
	Item #11.	2020-11-17 BOC Consent Agenda
	DRAFT 11-06-20 BOC Minutes
	DRAFT 11-06-20 BOC Called Meeting Minutes
	Cover Page
	Checklist
	Introduction
	Part A
	Part B
	Part C
	Part D
	Part F
	Part G
	Part H
	Part I
	Part J
	Part K
	Part L
	Part M
	Part N
	Part O
	Part P
	Part Q
	Part S
	Monthly Report
	Vehicle Operating Performance

	Item #12.	2020-11-17 BOC LMIG
	LMIG 2020

	Item #13.	2020-11-17 BOC Horton Road Abandonment
	Road Abandonment Checklist-Horton Drive
	Road Abandonment Certification-Horton Drive
	Property to be Abandoned

	Item #14.	2020-11-17 BOC Alternate Court Location
	20201117 Resolution Designating Alternate Courthouse Location

	Item #15.	2020-11-17 BOC Plaza
	Proposed Use Agreement - Plaza Arts Center county version with TPAC changes

	Item #16.	2020-11-17 BOC CM Report
	Item #17.	2020-11-17 BOC CA Report
	Item #18.	2020-11-17 BOC Comm Announcements
	Item #19.	2020-11-17 BOC Adjourn
	Bottom

